
 

 

 

 

 

 

Pendleton Planning Commission 

Regular Meet ing 

October 20, 2005 

 

 

Minutes 

 

 

Members Present Staff Present 

 

Teresa Horton Jim Noonan Dave Williford Heather L. Colin, SC ACOG 

Joe Pearson Phillip Morgan  

Gussie Gibson Jim Smith 

 

1.  Opening, Establishment of a Quorum 

Chair Teresa Horton called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  With all seven members present, a 
quorum was established. 

 

2.  Review of Minutes from September  15, 2005 

Heather Colin read aloud the minutes from the September 15, 2005 regular meeting. There was a 
correction on the number of units per acre on page 4 under Ms. RowlandÕs comments. It should 
read, ÒA ten acre tract with thirty two residences would have a density of 3.2 units per acre. A one 
hundred acre area with 320 units would have a density of 3.2 units per acre. Ms. Colin stated that 
she would make the corrections. 

Mr. Noonan made a motion to approve the minutes with the correction, Ms. Gibson seconded. 
The motion passed 7-0, no opposition. 

 

 



 2 

3.  Public Comment 

Ms. Colin made comments clarifying issues that have come up since the last planning 
commission meeting and addressed questions that have also been raised. The comments included 
the following statements: 

1. The numbers and outlined areas will go away on the f inal map once it is adopted and are 
shown to highlight areas with changes; 

2. There is a perception that the changes are in response to developers. Some came from the 
previous public input process and some just make good sense for the community; 

3. The amount of land designated as Agricultural-Forestry is 11% less than in 1999, still 
covering 14% of the Town. Other municipalities in the area have no more than 5%; 

4. The area designated for high-density residential is very small and may lead to a legal 
challenge for not providing suff icient opportunity for this type of use, although this can 
be responded to should the issue arise; 

5. This plan is consistent with smart growth principles, allowing residential development at 
higher densities and f illing in pockets rather than pushing subdivision out and promoting 

6. While everyone wants to protect their community, no community is static, they either 
prosper with growth or whither away and become stagnant.; and 

7. The 2005 map separates the commercial into three categories which puts in place the 
ability to create zoning categories that create areas with three distinct characters. 

Ms. Horton then requested public comments  

 

Warren Bezzell. 104 Plantation Dr 

Asked if it was possible for the public to make comment and ask questions after an item is 
brought up on the agenda.  

Ms. Horton responded that yes after item 5 (rezoning request on Seawright Dr) they would 
request public comment. 

Tim Hume. 504 S Mechanic St 

He questioned the difference between the commercial designation on the 1999 map and the three 
on the 2005 map. He stated that the ordinance already has the different commercial 
classifications. 

Staff responded that the future land use map designations are not necessarily the same as what is 
listed in the zoning ordinance. The future land use designations are broader. 

He stated that the minutes from the August meeting did not reflect his questions, which he 
repeated at Town Council in September and October. He is concerned about when members of 
the public comment on the map, is the Commission open minded or will they have a one sided 
opinion. He asked if there was a way to slow down the process. It is his experience that in the past 
sessions, public comment does no good.  

His f irst question is: 

"Will you give weight to what you hear at the public meetings and are you open to suggestions?" 
"Is it possible to produce for the public hearings, not just the map but a chart that shows what 
each of the proposed changes is, area size and if there is a plan, what is the plan?" He stated that 
he has seen a plan for the development across the elementary school and everyone should be able 



 3 

to see that. He stated that his question is ultimately, what is the impact of the proposed changes. 
He stated that although the map doesn't change zoning it does cause change. He stated an 
example about someone requesting a rezoning request and if the future land use map matches 
their request, the Planning Commission would be obligated to approve it. 

He asked why we can't slowdown or do the map in stages when we don't know the impact of 
Pendleton Station. He wants to know why we have to move on the map now. If all of the 
developments get built out, he questions the population and housing growth as well as traff ic 
issues. The reason people came to Pendleton is in danger of being lost. 

Ms. Horton responded to the public comments and whether the Commission would entertain the 
suggestions. She stated that that is how the map became what it is. 

Elis E Clark. 171 E Main St 

He sees the development becoming Pendleton City, which Pendleton is not, it is a small historical 
town, and its history of the town is beyond the square. He also stated that the green areas are only 
on the outskirts of town. He is concerned about the development across from the school, 
particularly the traff ic and population density. He wants someone to develop from a historical 
perspective, large homes on large lots. The developer should be responsible to the community. 

Pam Roland, 1613 Dannon Howell Rd 

She questioned who was responsible to inform their constituents of the f irst meetings and what 
the process was.  

Ms. Horton responded that it was the Town Council members.  

Ms. Roland discussed the conference that she attended concerning growth and that citizen 
participation needs to be done at the beginning not the end. She also questioned the price of the 
maps.  

Ms. Colin stated that the large maps are $10.00. 

Ms. Roland read a letter concerning no. 8 on the future land use map and presented a petition of 
citizens against the designation of this area and request that it be changed from medium density to 
low density. 

Wendy Longo, Warly Circle 

She asked about traff ic considerations, road widening, etc. if the area on Queen Street becomes 
commercial. She thinks that before we change the land use we should consider the traff ic 
problems and issues there. 

Ms. Colin responded that traff ic patterns and issues would be reviewed at greater detail when a 
rezoning request is f iled. 

She requested that traff ic be reviewed now or a safety disaster may be created. 

Priscilla Cline, 950 E Queen St 

She expressed her concern over changes from agricultural forestry to medium or high density 
residential, particularly the area on E Queen Street across from the school. She stated that there 
should be green space and trees within the town. She stated that the proposed density in that area 
is excessive. She tied in her concerns with the school plans for expansion and the compounding 
of the problem by increasing density and population which will require even more schools. She 
also stated that there will be an increase danger with increase traff ic. That area should have low or 
very low residential. She stated that there need to be larger homes on larger lots at lower 
densities. 



 4 

Ms. Horton explained the schools plan for growth, which take into account population growth. 

Susan McClore, 114 Liberty Hall Dr 

She asked about the difference between the commercial classif ications. She wants to request that 
no. 11 be changed. This is the entrance into the town and we need to upgrade the visual entrance 
into the town. She stated that there are design elements that should be considered to ensure good 
commercial development. Ms. McClore wanted clarif ication on what uses would be allowed 
should that area be rezoned. 

Staff stated that that area could be used for commercial, restaurants, retail, etc, but all 
requirements in the zoning ordinance must be met, including parking requirements before a 
business could occupy the site. 

Priscilla Cline, 905 E Queen St 

She reiterated her concerns over the growth and its effect on schools. 

Ms. Horton stated that the plans for expansion look at projections and look at the entire district. 

Suzanne Patur Harney, 1015 E Queen St 

She requested that maps be made available in conspicuous locations in Town Hall for people to 
review; as well as a copy of the existing 1999 land use map. 

Ms. Colin stated that smaller maps are available for $2 a copy as well as larger maps at $10. She 
stated that she would be happy to work with citizenÕs request on what documents they need. 

Ms. Harney responded to comments made by Ms. Colin concerning other communities green 
space available. She stated that other communities should not be used as a barometer. Pendleton 
has a blessing with green space and we need to think about whether or not we want development 
on those spaces. She commented on the development across the elementary school. She wanted to 
stress to the citizens that an application was f iled for the development across from the school for 
the public to review. Staff did state that the applicant has requested that the application be held 
until the future land use map is adopted. Ms. Harney commented on staff 's introduction about the 
town's character. Staff explained that she meant that the town's character should be preserved 
however town's change and development can be respectful of that, but no community remains 
static. Ms. Harney stressed that there are vacant storefronts downtown for retail and commercial 
opportunities. She also discussed public notice and getting the word out, possibly in water bills. 
She expressed concern that the school principal was not aware of pending developments 
particularly across from the school. She wants to see a Planning Commission that is proactive not 
reactive and the town needs to lead development not let development lead them. She wants a 
mission that is better articulated and clearer, she read aloud the current statement, which she 
stated did not tell her anything as to what the town wants to accomplish. She also expressed the 
history and its importance to the town as well as green space and the small town ambience. Her 
f inal comments were about the water system and its adequacy to put out house f ires. She stated 
that the town should add f ire ordinances at the same time development is approved. The changes 
to the future land use map concerns her in terms of traff ic, density, infrastructure, and doesn't 
think the town needs medium or high density residential. She would like the town to attract 
different types of homeowners. 

Karen Meehan, 401 Five Forks Road, Anderson 

She questioned who owns the green space that is shown on the map and wants to know how much 
of the space is privately owned or owned by institutions. 

Ms. Colin responded that that is irrelevant; ownership is not considered when designating 
property for the future land use. 



 5 

Ms. Meehan stated that if  it weren't for Clemson, Pendleton would be without quite a bit of green 
space and if you eliminated Clemson property, Pendleton would not have much green space. 

Ms. Colin reiterated that ownership is not reviewed when designating property.  

Mr. Smith also commented that Pendleton should consider themselves fortunate, because 
Clemson owns the property and most likely it will never be developed. 

Ms. Meehan stated that we should be inclined to designate more open space because Clemson 
owns the majority of the open space. 

Chris Harney, 1015 East Queen Street 

He says that it is unclear who the town is trying to attract and is not sure what considerations have 
been made for the economics. He stated that the medium density may work out according to the 
numbers but the lots are very small with numerous cars being disgorged across from the 
elementary school. He stated that the families earning more income should be attracted and we 
should consider if  we are helping out the businesses by attracting higher median income families. 
He stated that the Town should consider who we are trying to attract and consider the children 
who attend the elementary school. 

Jackie Reynolds, 316 South Broad Street 

She made the following comments: 

1) Historic overlays, historic tourism element is important particularly the town square area which 
now includes many historic homes which are put at risk for development to many things. She 
stated that it is a shame to convert, 'it is the goose that lay the golden egg' for Pendleton. 

2) She is also concerned about #11 along S Mechanic Street turning commercial, many homes are 
also located there. The town needs to control the development along the entrance to the town. 
Mainstreet programs and revitalization should be considered for the town square. The kinds of 
business that are attracted unfortunately attract start up businesses, which allows for a steady 
stream of available space. 

4. Rezoning Request for  Seawr ight Dr ive from AF -Agr icultural to R-2 Low Density 
Residential. 

Ms. Colin read a brief staff report stating the facts of the rezoning request by Roy Garris for the 
property located at Seawright Drive from AF, Agricultural/Forest to R-2, Low Density 
Residential. Mr. Garris did not have anything to add to the report. 

Mr. Smith asked for clarif ication a~1 to what the request was and stated for the record that all 
surrounding property is also zoned R-2. Mr. Smith also discussed the Magnolia Pointe and the 
early concerns and fears about the development, which has turned out to be a successful project 
with good people. 

Public Comment on Rezoning Request: 

Ward Bezell, Magnolia Pointe 

He is president of the Magnolia Pointe Home Owner's Association. He wanted to go on record as 
having no opposition to the request. 

Frank Bassat, 103 Magnolia Pointe 

He stated that he is afraid that it will be changed to high density and sold to a development 
company. 

Staff stated that if  a new rezoning request was made, another request would have to be f iled with 
a public meeting. 



 6 

Mr. Smith made a motion that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the request for 
rezoning of the property on Seawright Drive be changed from AF to R-2. Morgan seconded the 
motion. The motion passed 7-0. 

5. Public Process and Future Land Use Map Update 

Ms. Colin informed the Commission about the upcoming in-formal workshops and public 
hearings. She showed the brochures and encouraged everyone to help distribute them and that 
they are available at Town Hall. S he stated that there are computer diff iculties to get the map on 
the website and information can not be included with the water bill because they are mailed in 
postcard form. Ms. Colin also stated that a citizen input form has been created and is available on 
the web site and Town Hall. She also said that the Town will put the information about the 
meetings on the two signs within Town, however, other meetings and functions are also put on 
the sign, so the message will change according to event dates. She discussed how the drop-ins and 
workshops would work, the drop-in, and informal mingling and discussion with commissioners 
and staff with maps and informational posters displayed. The public hearings will be formal 
meetings with comments taken on the record to be integrated in the Commission's f inal 
recommendations. She asked if the Commission had any other suggestions or direction for staff. 

Ms. Harney 

She wanted to reiterate how and where the brochures and maps were distributed. She asked if the 
proposed map could be displayed right at the front desk rather than in the hallway. 

6. Other  Business 

Ms. Horton stated that she had received an application for the Commission to be in the Christmas 
parade and for the Commission to think about. 

Mr. Smith asked for staff to change the legend on the map to list commercial properties from less 
intensive to more intensive similar to the residential. 

Mr. Noonan brought up some changes and errors in the map. 

Mr. Noonan made a motion to change the property north of the square, surrounding the cemetery 
to be institutional as well as the property across the street. Also the Edgewood apartments 
changed to high density residential and #9 the commercial section should only be 300' deep. 

Mr. Noonan made a motion to recognize the changes discussed, Edgewood apartments to High 
Density Residential, commercial section only 300' deep in the Meehan property along Mechanic 
Street, property near Jackson Street as discussed to Institutional. Joe Pearson seconded the 
motion, the motion passed with a vote of 7-0. 

Ellis E Cline 

Spoke again concerning the school and reiterated that the Planning Commission must think 
deeply about the comments concerning our children and traff ic. 

 

7.  Adj ournment 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:00 PM. 


